MINUTES of the meeting of Southern Area Planning Sub-Committee held at The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford on Wednesday, 7th November, 2007 at 2.00 p.m.

Present: Councillor G Lucas (Chairman)

Councillor PD Price (Vice Chairman)

Councillors: CM Bartrum, PGH Cutter, MJ Fishley, AE Gray, JA Hyde,

TMR McLean, RH Smith and DC Taylor

In attendance: Councillors DW Greenow, TW Hunt, JE Pemberton and RV Stockton

83. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillors H Bramer, JG Jarvis, and JB Williams.

84. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The following declaration of interest was made:

| Councillor | Item | Interest |
|------------------------------------------------|----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| AE Gray | Agenda Item 13 DCSE2007/2920/F — Proposed additional unit to approved scheme ref: DCSE2007/0645/F. | A prejudicial interest was declared and the member left the meeting for the duration of the item. |
| | The Old Canoe Store, Millpond Street, Ross-on-Wye, Herefordshire, HR9 7AP. | |
| CM Bartrum PGH Cutter JA Hyde G Lucas | Agenda Item 16 DCSE2007/3043/F — Conversion of and first and second floor extension to disused garage building at rear of hotel to create three storey building of 9 no. flats. | A personal interest was declared and the members remained in the room for the debate and vote. |
| | Kings Head Hotel, High Street, Ross-on-Wye | |

85. MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 10th October, 2007 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

86. ITEM FOR INFORMATION - APPEALS

The Sub-Committee noted the Council's current position in respect of planning appeals for the southern area of Herefordshire.

87. DCSW2007/2050/F & DCSW2007/2029/L - SHOP BARN, PWLL-Y-HUNT, PONTRILAS, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR2 0HF (AGENDA ITEM 5)

Construction of garage/workshop building to accompany Shop Barn.

The Principal Planning Officer reported the following:

 One letter of representation received from Ms J Tyler. She commented that she would object to the application if the building was re-sited lower down the site. She felt that the proposed siting was acceptable and out of view of all parties concerned.

The Chairman, speaking in the absence of the Local Ward Member, felt that the site inspection had highlighted the sensitive nature of the site. He noted that the access was poor and felt that the workshop building should be re-sited to a more suitable position.

Councillor PGH Cutter agreed with the points raised by the Chairman, he also had concerns that the neighbouring residents could suffer a loss of amenity through overlooking, and that the application was in open countryside.

RESOLVED

- That: (i) The Southern Area Planning Sub-Committee is minded to refuse the application subject to the reasons for refusal set out below (and any further reasons for refusal felt to be necessary by the Head of Planning Services) provided that the Head of Planning Services does not refer the application to the Planning Committee:
 - A) Concerns regarding the access to the site
 - B) Loss of amenity to neighbouring residents
 - C) Negative impact on the rural character of the area
 - (ii) If the Head of Planning Services does not refer the application to the Planning Committee, Officers named in the Scheme of Delegation to Officers be instructed to refuse the application subject to such reasons for refusal referred to above.

[Note: Following the vote on this application, the Development Control Manager advised that he would not refer the decision to the Head of Planning Services.]

88. DCSW2007/2980/F - FOUNTAIN COTTAGE, NEWTON ST. MARGARETS, HEREFORD, HR2 0QW (AGENDA ITEM 6)

Single storey extension and alterations, and a separate workshop.

The Principal Planning Officer advised members that no representation had been received from the Parish Council.

Councillor PD Price, speaking in the absence of the local ward member, noted the officer's recommendation and felt that the application should be approved.

RESOLVED

That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:

1. A01 (Time limit for commencement (full permission))

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. B01 (Samples of external materials) (workshop)

Reason: To ensure that the materials harmonise with the surroundings.

3. E06 (Restriction on Use)

Reason: The local planning authority wish to control the specific use of the land/premises, in the interest of local amenity.

4. E27 (Personal condition)

Reason: The nature of the development is such that it is only considered acceptable in this location having regard to the applicant's special circumstances.

Informative(s):

- 1. N19 Avoidance of doubt
- 2. N15 Reason(s) for the Grant of Planning Permission

89. DCSW2007/2404/F -LAND AT HAWTHORN RISE, PETERCHURCH, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR2 0RQ (AGENDA ITEM 7)

Erection of six dwellings.

In accordance with the criteria for public speaking, Mrs Savage spoke in objection to the application.

Councillor PD Price, the Local Ward Member, noted that a number of the original objections had now been overcome with the revised plans. He felt that this was reflected in the Parish Council's support of the scheme. He voiced concerns over the access and felt that this may be compromised by the addition of another dwelling.

In response to the points raised by the Local Ward Member, the Principal Planning Officer advised members that the Highways Agency were happy with the revised access and felt that the proposed parking layout was also acceptable. He also noted that the access would be finalised on completion of plot 16.

RESOLVED

That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:

1. A01 (Time limit for commencement (full permission))

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. B01 (Samples of external materials)

Reason: To ensure that the materials harmonise with the surroundings.

3. E09 (No conversion of garage to habitable accommodation)

Reason: To ensure adequate off street parking arrangements remain available at all times.

4. E16 (Removal of permitted development rights)

Reason: To protect the residential amenity of adjacent properties.

5. A landscape management plan, including long term design objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscape areas, other than privately owned domestic gardens shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to the commencement of the development or any phase of the development, whichever is the sooner, for its permitted use. The landscape management plan shall be carried out as approved.

Reason: In order to maintain the visual amenity of the area and to comply with Policy LA6 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007.

6. Notwithstanding the approved drawings, a management plan for the responsibilities and maintenance of the private road serving the six bungalows shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to the commencement of the development or any phase of the development, whichever is the sooner. The road management plan shall be carried out as approved.

Reason: In order to maintain the private road to an acceptable standard to comply with Policies S2, S6 and H13 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007.

7. No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the provision of surface water disposal including SuDs has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Such scheme shall be implemented before the first use of the development hereby approved.

Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory means of surface water disposal and to comply with Policies DR4 and DR7 of the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan 2007.

8. H13 (Access, turning area and parking)

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure the free flow of traffic using the adjoining highway.

9. H19 (On site roads - phasing)

Reason: To ensure an adequate and acceptable means of access is available before the dwelling or building is occupied.

10. H27 (Parking for site operatives)

Reason: To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interests of highway safety.

Informative(s):

- 1. HN01 Mud on highway
- 2. HN04 Private apparatus within highway
- 3. HN05 Works within the highway
- 4. HN10 No drainage to discharge to highway
- 5. N19 Avoidance of doubt
- 6. N15 Reason(s) for the Grant of Planning Permission

90. DCSW2007/2978/O - BROOKVIEW, CLEHONGER, HEREFORD, HR2 9TJ (AGENDA ITEM 8)

Outline planning application for two dwellings.

In accordance with the criteria for public speaking, Mr Gardiner, the applicant, spoke in support of the application.

Councillor MJ Fishley, the Local Ward Member noted that the Parish Council did not object to the application. She felt that there was sufficient local need for the dwellings and advised members that there were already 4 existing dwellings on the lane. She felt that the application was not contrary to policy H7 or H10 of the Unitary Development Plan and that it should be supported.

Councillor DC Taylor, the neighbouring Ward Member, noted that the application was 400 yards outside of the settlement boundary but felt that there was sufficient housing need in the area for this to outweigh the policy issues at stake. He advised Members that the applicant had offered to use part of his own garden to improve the issues surrounding the access onto the road.

The Development Control Manager advised members that the Unitary Development Plan clearly stated that housing should only be permitted within the settlement boundary. He felt that the application was clearly contrary to the policies set out in the UDP which had only been adopted by the Council in March, 2007.

Councillor RH Smith felt that the UDP no longer represented the housing needs of the County and should be revised accordingly. He felt that the proposed application should be an exception and should be approved.

Councillor PGH Cutter felt that the application was for infill development and should therefore be permitted. He also felt that the provision of two modest dwellings would benefit the village of Clehonger.

RESOLVED

The Southern Area Planning Sub-Committee is minded to approve the application subject to the conditions set out below (and any further conditions felt to be necessary by the Head of Planning Services) provided that the Head of Planning Services does not refer the application to the Planning Committee.

1) No conditions were recommended by members.

If the Head of Planning Services does not refer the application to the Planning Committee, officers named in the scheme of delegation to officers be instructed to approve the application to such conditions referred to above.

[Note: Following the vote on this application, the Development Control Manager advised that he would refer the decision to the Head of Planning Services]

91. DCSE2007/2898/F - ADJACENT TO NO. 4 MARTINS CLOSE, WOOLHOPE, HEREFORD, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR1 4QS (AGENDA ITEM 9)

3 dwellings for rent comprising 2 no. 2 bed & 1 no. 3 bed houses.

In accordance with the criteria for public speaking Mrs Kingston spoke in objection to the application.

Councillor TMR McLean, the Local Ward Member, advised members that she had proposed refusal of the previous application on this site on grounds of design. She noted that the applicant had resubmitted the application with amended plans but still felt there were a number of other concerns that hadn't been addressed. She felt that the plot was not large enough to accommodate 3 dwellings and that granting the application would have a detrimental impact on the neighbouring church and residential dwellings.

Councillor RH Smith agreed with the concerns raised by the local ward member but he also felt that the poor access onto the site should be added as a reason for refusal.

In response to the points raised by members, the Senior Planning Officer advised them that he felt that the reasons for refusal outlined in 6.3 had been addressed by the applicant. Councillor TMR McLean felt that further reasons for refusal had been highlighted during a visit to the site.

Councillor PD Price felt that the application should be supported, he noted that the application fell within the settlement boundary and that the access and the location were acceptable.

RESOLVED

- That: (i) The Southern Area Planning Sub-Committee is minded to refuse the application subject to the reasons for refusal set out below (and any further reasons for refusal felt to be necessary by the Head of Planning Services) provided that the Head of Planning Services does not refer the application to the Planning Committee:
 - D) Plot too small for 3 dwellings.
 - E) Loss of amenity to neighbouring listed building.
 - (ii) If the Head of Planning Services does not refer the application to the Planning Committee, Officers named in the Scheme of Delegation to Officers be instructed to refuse the application subject to such reasons for refusal referred to above.

[Note: Following the vote on this application, the Development Control Manager advised that he would refer the decision to the Head of Planning Services.]

92. DCSE2007/2757/F - REDCROFT, LLANGROVE, ROSS-ON-WYE, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR9 6EY (AGENDA ITEM 10)

Demolition of existing garage. Extension to form annexe accommodation, new garage and larger porch/utility room. New dormer window to existing property.

In accordance with the criteria for public speaking, Mr Hughes, the applicant, spoke in support of his application.

Councillor JA Hyde, the local ward member, felt that the application should be approved contrary to the views of the parish council. She felt that the conditions would address any concerns raised.

RESOLVED

That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:

1. A01 (Time limit for commencement (full permission))

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. B02 (Matching external materials (extension))

Reason: To ensure the external materials harmonise with the existing building.

3. E15 (Restriction on separate sale)

Reason: It would be contrary to the policy of the local planning authority to grant consent for a separate dwelling in this location.

Informative(s):

- 1. N19 Avoidance of doubt
- 2. N15 Reason(s) for the Grant of Planning Permission
- 93. DCSE2007/2823/F LAND OFF CASTLE LANE, GOODRICH, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR9 6HY (AGENDA ITEM 11)

Erection of a detached dwelling.

RESOLVED

That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:

1. A01 (Time limit for commencement (full permission))

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. B01 (Samples of external materials)

Reason: To ensure that the materials harmonise with the surroundings.

3. F48 (Details of slab levels)

Reason: In order to define the permission and ensure that the

development is of a scale and height appropriate to the site.

4. G09 (Retention of trees/hedgerows)

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the area.

5. H12 (Parking and turning – single house (2 cars))

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure the free flow of traffic using the adjoining highway.

Informative(s):

- 1. HN01 Mud on highway
- 2. N19 Avoidance of doubt
- 3. N15 Reason(s) for the Grant of Planning Permission

94. DCSE2007/2790/F - NEWTON VILLA, ASHFIELD CRESCENT, ROSS-ON-WYE, HR9 5PH (AGENDA ITEM 12)

Removal of condition 4 of planning application SE2002/0386/F to allow continued letting of building that was developed for ancillary accommodation (retrospective application).

Councillor CM Bartrum, the Local Ward Member, noted that the majority of the objections raised by local residents related to congestion. He also advised members that Ross Town Council had not objected to the application.

RESOLVED

That planning permission be granted.

Informative(s):

- 1. N19 Avoidance of doubt
- 2. N15 Reason(s) for the Grant of Planning Permission

95. DCSE2007/2920/F - THE OLD CANOE STORE, MILLPOND STREET, ROSS-ON-WYE, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR9 7AP (AGENDA ITEM 13)

Proposed additional unit to approved scheme ref: DCSE2007/0645/F.

The Principal Planning Officer reported the following:

 Two further letters of representation have been received, one of which has been signed by 10 residents of Wallace court. A number of points in relation to the dry access, boundary wall, water storage, site maintenance and overlooking are raised.

The Principal Planning Officer advised members of an addition condition which would cover the aspect of the dry pedestrian access. He also advised Members that the applicant had been asked to consider an additional boundary wall.

In accordance with the Code of Conduct Councillor AE Gray, who had declared a

prejudicial interest in respect of the item, addressed the sub-committee before withdrawing from the meeting for the ensuing debate and vote.

In accordance with the criteria for public speaking, Mrs Harvey spoke in objection to the application and Mr Pritchard, the applicant's agent, spoke in support.

Councillor PGH Cutter proposed a site inspection on the following grounds that the character or appearance of the development itself were a fundamental planning consideration and that the setting and surroundings were fundamental to the determination or to the conditions being considered.

RESOLVED:

That consideration of the application be deferred for a site inspection for the following reasons:

- the character or appearance of the development itself is a fundamental planning consideration
- the setting and surroundings are fundamental to the determination or to the conditions being considered.

96. DCSE2006/4006/F - BETWEEN THE JUNCTION OF A40(T) - A449 AND RUDHALL BROOK, ROSS-ON-WYE, HEREFORDSHIRE. (AGENDA ITEM 14)

Three arm roundabout on the alignment of the existing A40(T). Location on A40(T) highway.

The Principal Planning Officer reported the following:

 A supporting letter from the applicant's agent, full details of this letter were submitted to all attendees of the sub-committee in the officer's update sheet.

In accordance with the criteria for public speaking, Mr Edwards spoke in objection to the application.

Councillor PGH Cutter, one of the local ward members, had concerns in respect of the figures relating to traffic statistics. He questioned the accuracy of the figures if no readings had been taken on the site. He also had concerns in respect of noise and road safety and felt that appropriate signage would be required to advise road users of the approaching roundabout.

Councillor AE Gray, the other local ward member, felt that illuminated signs would help address some of the concerns regarding road safety.

Councillor JA Hyde felt that the proposed conditions covered a number of the objections raised by the local residents. She also felt that there should be provision of an access for the caravan park off the roundabout.

In response to a number of points raised by members, the Principal Planning Officer advised that an access to the caravan park had been included in the design. He also confirmed that the Highways Agency had carried out a road safety audit and were happy with the applicant's proposal. In response to the request for illuminated signage and a reduced speed limit, he confirmed that the sub-committee could not condition these aspects as they fell under the remit of the Highways Agency. In respect of the issues relating to noise, the Principal Planning Officer advised members that they Environmental Health Officer had used widely accepted methods

and was satisfied with the results.

The Development Control Manager advised Members that a condition could be added to the resolution to cover the issue of noise monitoring on the site.

RESOLVED

That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:

1 A01 (Time limit for commencement (full permission))

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 G01 (Details of boundary treatments)

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure dwellings have satisfactory privacy.

3 G04 (Landscaping scheme (general))

Reason: In order to protect the visual amenities of the area.

4 G05 (Implementation of landscaping scheme (general))

Reason: In order to protect the visual amenities of the area.

No development shall take place until a scheme for monitoring the noise of traffic along the A40(T) within the application site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme shall make provision for monitoring noise levels at the southern façade of 13 Chatsworth Close before the roundabout is constructed and at 6 month and 12 months after the roundabout is completed and opened to vehicular traffic. The results of noise monitoring shall be made available to the local planning authority no later than 7 days following the date of each survey. Noise measurements shall include the LA10(16hr), 6a.m. to midnight.

Reason: To protect the amenities of occupiers of nearby residential properties

If noise levels measured at 6 or 12 months after completion of the roundabout exceed the noise level prior to its construction by more than 1dBA LA10(16hr) a scheme of mitigation to reduce noise levels at the façade of 8, 9, 10, 12 and 13 Chatsworth Close shall be submitted for approval in writing by the local planning authority within one month of the date of monitoring. The scheme shall be designed to reduce noise levels at the facades of the above properties to the levels prior to construction of the roundabout shall be carried out within 3 months of submission of the scheme to the local planning authority and thereafter permanently retained.

Reason: To protect the amenities of occupiers of nearby residential properties

INFORMATIVES:

The highway proposals associated with this consent as shown on drawing number 50390/100 rev C (Tanyard Lane, Ross on Wye, Site Access Roundabout) involve works within the public highway, which is land over which you have no control. The Highways Agency therefore requires you to enter into a suitable legal agreement to cover the detailed design and construction of the works. Please contact Mr Jon McCarthy of the Highways Agency's Area 9 team; at an early stage to discuss the details of the highways agreement, his contact details are as follows:

Area 9
Highways Agency
C4/5 Broadway
Broad Street
Birmingham
B15 1BL

- 2 N19 Avoidance of doubt
- 3 N15 Reason(s) for the Grant of Planning Permission
- 97. DCSE2007/2556/F & DCSE2007/2555/C GARDNER BUTCHER GARAGES, BROOKEND STREET, ROSS-ON-WYE, HEREFORDSHIRE, HR9 7EG (AGENDA ITEM 15)
 - A) Erection of Aldi Discount Foodstore with associated parking, landscaping and access.
 - B) Demolition of existing buildings to facilitate redevelopment for Aldi Foodstore.

The Principal Planning Officer reported the following:

- A further letter of correspondence from English Heritage who confirmed that their original comments still stood despite the revised plans. They also had concerns regarding the close-boarded fence on the north of the site.
- A further letter of correspondence from the Environment Agency relating to PPS25, Sewer Diversion, Finished Floor Levels, Flood Storage, Flood Flows, Access, and Surface Water, full details of this letter were included in the update sheet which was circulated at the meeting.
- A letter from the applicant's agent advising the committee that the Aldi were prepared to increase their financial contribution to £40,000 for all works included in the section 106 agreement. In addition to this they were willing to pay up to £5000 for any TRO required.

He also reported the following comments in the update sheet:

- The conservation manager has indicated that the revised drawings meet his concerns with regard to the design of the store. The applicant's architect is reconsidering the boundary treatment and further revised drawings will be submitted
- The Environment Agency has withdrawn its objection subject to conditions. I
 consider that diversion of the sewer can be adequately covered by a
 condition and does not need to be included in the S106 agreement.
- Revised drawings for the access are still awaited.

The Principal Planning Officer advised Members of the revised contribution offered by the applicant. He confirmed that the Transport Manager had accepted the contribution outlined in the amended draft heads of terms, detailed below.

HEADS OF TERMS

- 1. A contribution of £20,000 towards upgrading of bus stops.
- 2. A contribution of £17,500 towards upgrading footpaths to shared use and other pedestrian links.
- 3. A contribution of £2,500 towards the adjoining public car park.
- 4. To meet the costs of a TRO required in connection with the development up to a maximum sum of £5,000.
- 5. To undertake to amend the access to the store once a TRO has been made and implemented in accordance with the approved drawings and an agreed timetable.

In accordance with the criteria for public speaking, Mr Reynolds spoke in objection to the application on behalf of the residents of Fontaine Court.

Councillor CM Bartrum, one of the Local Ward Members, noted that outline planning permission was initially granted in 1999, he felt that the site was currently an eyesore and felt that approving the application would improve the area. He noted the concerns raised by the residents of Fontaine Court and felt that they should be consulted in respect of landscaping and overlooking.

Councillor TMR McLean felt that the scheme needed to go ahead but felt disappointed that a larger supermarket chain had not shown an interest in the site. She felt that a condition limiting delivery times would help allay some of the concerns of the local residents.

Councillor PGH Cutter felt that the proposed supermarket would result in a number of employment opportunities for the residents of Ross-on-Wye and therefore supported the application.

In response to a number of points raised by members, the Development Control Manager confirmed that Landscaping conditions had been included in the recommendation, he also agreed to consult with the Local Ward Members in respect of this subject. He advised members that a condition regarding delivery hours could be included once agreed with the applicant.

RESOLVED

In respect of DCSE2007/2556/F

That

- 1) Subject to submission of acceptable revised drawings with regard to boundary treatment and access, agreement in principle to enter a Section 106 Agreement:
- 2) The Legal Practice Manager be authorised to complete a planning obligation agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to mitigate the highway impacts of the development and meet the costs of highway works:
- 3) Upon completion of the aforementioned planning obligation that the

officers named in the Scheme of Delegation to Officers be authorised to issue planning permission subject to the following conditions:

1 A01 (Time limit for commencement (full permission))

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

- The Class A1 food retail store shall be used for the retail sale of food within Class A1 of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order, 1987 only, except where the retail sale of non-food goods forms a minor and ancillary part of the operation of any of the retail activity but shall not include the following:
 - i) a pharmacy and sale of pharmaceutical goods
 - ii) sale of newspapers and Magazines
 - iii) reception of goods for dry cleaning
 - iv) a post office

Reason: To protect the viability of the town centre.

3 B01 (Samples of external materials)

Reason: To ensure that the materials harmonise with the surroundings.

4 G01 (Details of boundary treatments)

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure dwellings have satisfactory privacy.

5 G04 (Landscaping scheme (general))

Reason: In order to protect the visual amenities of the area.

6 G05 (Implementation of landscaping scheme (general))

Reason: In order to protect the visual amenities of the area.

7 F32 (Details of floodlighting/external lighting)

Reason: To safeguard local amenities.

8 W01 (Foul/surface water drainage)

Reason: To protect the integrity of the public sewerage system.

9 W02 (No surface water to connect to public system)

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overloading of the public sewerage system, to protect the health and safety of existing residents and ensure no detriment to the environment.

10 W03 (No drainage run-off to public system)

Reason: To prevent hydraulic overload of the public sewerage system and pollution of the environment.

11 D01 (Site investigation - archaeology)

Reason: To ensure the archaeological interest of the site is recorded.

12 H31 (Outline Travel Plan)

Reason and Informative Notes as above.

13 H27 (Parking for site operatives)

Reason: To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interests of highway safety.

14 Finished floor levels shall be set no lower than 33.19m AOD and flood proofing techniques shall be incorporated into the design of the building no lower than 33.79 AOD, in accordance with section 7.1.1 of the FRA dated 18.7.07, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA

Reason: To protect the building from flood risk for the lifetime of the development

Prior to the occupation of the store, an Evacuation Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA in consultation with the LA Emergency Planning Officer and Emergency Services. The Plan shall include full details of proposed awareness training and procedure for evacuation (including vehicles), training of staff, and method and procedures for timed evacuation. It shall also include a commitment to retain and update the Plan and include a timescale for revision of the Plan.

Reason: To minimise the flood related danger to people and property.

Prior to being discharged into any watercourse, surface water sewer or soakaway system, all surface water drainage from parking areas and hardstandings including the goods yard area, shall be passed through an oil interceptor designed and constructed to have a capacity and details compatible with the site being drained. Roof water shall not pass through the interceptor.

Reason: To prevent pollution of the water environment.

17 No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the provision and implementation of a surface water regulation system including the use of permeable paving on car parking areas (Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA, in consultation with the Environment Agency.

Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding and provide water quality benefits by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory means of surface water disposal.

Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed foul and surface water drainage arrangements including diversion of the existing sewer shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented before the first use of the building[s] hereby permitted.

Reason: In order to ensure that satisfactory drainage arrangements are provided.

INFORMATIVES:

- 1 W02 Welsh Water rights of access
- 2 HN01 Mud on highway
- 3 HN04 Private apparatus within highway
- 4 HN05 Works within the highway
- 5 HN07 Section 278 Agreement
- 6 HN10 No drainage to discharge to highway
- 7 HN21 Extraordinary maintenance
- 8 HN22 Works adjoining highway
- 9 HN25 Travel plans
- 10 N19 Avoidance of doubt
- 11 N15 Reason(s) for the Grant of Planning Permission.

98. DCSE2007/3043/F - KINGS HEAD HOTEL, HIGH STREET, ROSS-ON-WYE (AGENDA ITEM 16)

Conversion of and first and second floor extension to disused garage building at rear of hotel to create three storey building of 9 no. flats.

RESOLVED:

That consideration of the application be deferred for a site inspection for the following reasons:

 the setting and surroundings are fundamental to the determination or to the conditions being considered